

Pupil Attendance Policy

Tees Valley Education Trust

Version:	1.0
Ratified by:	Trust Board
Date ratified:	December 2017
Name of originator/author:	K Barkley
Circulated to:	All Trust Staff/websites
Date issued:	January 2018
Review date:	
Target audience:	ALL TRUST STAFF/PARENTS/CARERS



TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	STATEMENT OF INTENT					
2.	EXPECTATIONS OF ATTENDANCE LEVELS					
3.	RECO	RDING ATTENDANCE: LEGAL RESPONSIBILITIES	. 4			
4.	ABSENCE PROCEDURE5					
	4.1	First and Second Day of Absence:	. 5			
	4.2	Third Day of Absence	. 5			
	4.3	Ten Day's Absence: Legal Obligation	. 5			
5.	ATTEN	IDANCE ABSENCE SUPPORT PROCESS	. 6			
	5.1	Bespoke Support:	. 6			
	5.2	Attendance Case Conference:	. 6			
6.	ILLNES	SS: GUIDANCE FOR PARENTS/CARERS	. 6			
7.	PUNCTUALITY/LATENESS 6					
8.	REQUEST FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE					
9.	PENALTY NOTICES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE AND OTHER LEGAL MEASURES					
	9.1	Legal Measures for tackling persistent absence or lateness	. 7			
10.	LEAVE	RS	. 8			
	10.1	Transfer Request	. 8			
	10.2	Gypsy, Roma, Traveller, Showman and Showman families	. 8			
APP	ENDIX	1: NHS RECOMMENDATIONS	. 9			
APP	ENDIX	2: MIDDLESBROUGH LA CODE OF CONDUCT	10			
	Penalt	ry Notice	10			
	Code of Conduct					
	Legal	Basis 1	13			
	Circun	nstances where a Penalty Notice may be issued	13			
۸DD	ENDIA	2. DEDCAD & CLEVELAND LA CODE DE CONDLICT	16			

1. STATEMENT OF INTENT

For a child to take full advantage of the educational opportunities offered, it is vital that they attend school, on time, every day the school is open unless the reason for the absence is unavoidable. The routines children develop around attendance and punctuality at school are the same as the expectations of any future employer in the world of work.

Tees Valley Education Trust (TVED) is committed to providing an education of the highest quality and endeavours to provide an environment where all young people feel valued and welcome. Parents/carers, pupils and the wider community all play a part in making each academy within TVED successful. Every child has the right to access the full education to which they are entitled.

As a trust we strive to achieve a goal of 100% attendance for all pupils. Every opportunity is taken to convey to the children and their families, the importance of regular and punctual attendance. Under Section 7 of the Education Act 1996, parents/carers are responsible for making sure that young people of compulsory school age receive full-time education. Parents have a legal responsibility to ensure their child's regular attendance at the school where they are registered.

If a young person of compulsory school age who is registered at a school fails to attend regularly at the school, the parent is guilty of an offence under Section 444(1) of the Education Act 1996.

Parents / carers are primarily responsible for ensuring their school-registered child attends every day. Where attendance problems occur, appropriate and effective case management will take place. This will be bespoke to each case and may include a range of collaborative working between the pupil, parent, academy, wider school community and Local Authority services.

Parents / carers are expected to follow attendance procedures within their child's academy. Parents are encouraged to work in partnership with the academy and are expected to notify the academy of the reason for any of their child's absences. Families are also encouraged to speak to academy staff with any areas of concern around attendance so that these can be addressed promptly.

2. EXPECTATIONS OF ATTENDANCE LEVELS

TVED works to the attendance bands below:

GREEN Band = 96% to 100% (Good)

AMBER Band = 93% to 95.9% (Requires Improvement)

RED Band = 91% to 92.9% (Cause for concern with attendance plan in place)

PERSISTENT ABSENTEE = 90% and below (Significant concern with identified / bespoke plan in place)

The Overall Academy Attendance Target, and the Target of TVED for each academic year is a minimum of **96%**.

Pupils are expected to:

- Attend their academy regularly and punctually.
- Pupils should be appropriately prepared for each day.
- Pupils, in line with both attendance and safeguarding policy, should be encouraged to talk to their teacher / member of academy staff about any problems that prevent them from attending the academy.

Good attendance is important because:

- Statistics show a direct link between under-achievement and absence below 96%
- Regular attenders make better progress, both socially and academically and find academy routines, work and friendships easier to cope with
- Regular attenders are more successful in transferring between primary school, secondary school, higher education, employment or training

Each individual Home/Academy attendance agreement contains details of how academies manage attendance on a daily basis. They give clarity of what pupils and parents / carers are expected to do to ensure their child achieves good attendance.

If absence is frequent or continuous, except where a child is clearly unwell, and there is medical evidence to support this, staff will discuss with parents/carers the need and reasons for their child's absence and will encourage them to keep absences to a minimum.

A note or explanation from a pupil's home does not mean an absence becomes authorised. The decision whether or not to authorise an absence will always rest with the Head Teacher.

The impact absence has on attendance

	School response	Time off	Learning lost over a year	Learning lost over a school career
100%	Outstanding	None	None	None
95%	Requires Improvement	Half a day each fortnight	2 weeks	10 weeks
90%	Persistent Absentee	1 day each fortnight	1 month	Over half a year
85%	Persistent Absentee Medical evidence	1 day and a half each fortnight	Nearly half a term	Nearly 1 full year
80%	Persistent Absentee Fines and legal action	1 day a week	Over half a term	1 whole school year

3. RECORDING ATTENDANCE: LEGAL RESPONSIBILITIES

Young people are expected to attend school every day for the entire duration of the academic year unless there is an **exceptional reason** for their absence.

Schools must legally take an attendance register twice a day. The first mark is taken at morning registration at 8.50am, and again at afternoon registration at 1.00pm. There are two attendance sessions every day, AM and PM, therefore missing school for a whole day counts as two absences.

Any absences will be recorded with a specific code depending on the type of absence.

Absences fall into two main categories:

Authorised Absence: is when the school has accepted the explanation offered as satisfactory justification for the absence, or has given approval in advance for such an absence. If no explanation is received, absences **will not** be authorised.

Unauthorised Absence: is when the school has not received a reason for absence, or has not approved a child's leave of absence from school after a parent's request.

Absence and attendance codes are held by individual academies in line with national expectation. These national codes enable schools to record and monitor attendance and absence in a consistent way which complies with regulations.

A school can, if needed, change an authorised absence to an unauthorised absence and vice versa if new information is presented. An example of this would be where a parent states a child is unwell but on return to school there is evidence they have been on holiday.

4. ABSENCE PROCEDURE

TVED holds the safeguarding of all pupils as the highest priority. A child not attending school is considered a safeguarding matter. Academies within the Trust retain the right to contact social care in line with safeguarding protocol at any point during the procedure below should there be concerns for a pupils / families welfare.

4.1 First and Second Day of Absence:

Parents/carers must make contact with the school on the first day of absence, and all subsequent days of absence. **This phone call should be made by 8.30am**. Any unexplained absence will be unauthorised.

Where explanations for absence are not received, a member of the Inclusion & Welfare Team will contact parents/carers by telephone, or home visit if necessary, asking them to provide the reason for their child's absence.

For prolonged absence, clear medical reasons are needed to support illness. Medical evidence must be provided, such as an appointment card or hospital letter.

4.2 Third Day of Absence

If a child is not seen and contact has not been established with parents/carers after two days of absence, the academy will carry out a home visit. All reasonable efforts will be made to establish contact with parents and the child, including making enquiries to known friends and wider family. Investigations will continue until the academy has made contact with, and seen the pupil, and the attendance issue addressed.

4.3 Ten Day's Absence: Legal Obligation

From the outset of absence, academies will investigate reasons for non-attendance. In line with trust safeguarding expectations, making visual contact with all non-attending pupils is paramount. Whilst academies in the trust would highlight concerns to the appropriate body before this time, schools have a legal duty to report the absence of any young person absent without an explanation for 10 consecutive days to the Local Authority. If the child is not seen and contact has not been established with the named parent/carer, then the Local Authority will be notified that the child is 'at risk of being missing'.

5. ATTENDANCE ABSENCE SUPPORT PROCESS

Parents are informed of their child's percentage attendance on a half termly basis. These letters give clarify impact of attendance levels as well as remind families of attendance procedures. Parents will be contacted individually by a member of the academy welfare team where attendance concerns arise (fall below 96%) or there are growing concerns surrounding pupil punctuality.

5.1 Bespoke Support:

In line with the attendance level table, bespoke support will be given to individual families regarding attendance issues. This support will be tailored to meet the need of families and individual pupils.

Where improvements in attendance rates are not seen, parents / carers will be invited to attend Attendance Case Conference meetings. (ACC's)

5.2 Attendance Case Conference:

Where pupil attendance is below expectation, or an improvement in pupil attendance does not take place, parents / carers will be invited to attend an ACC within the academy. This is a meeting held with the academy welfare officer and a designated member of staff within each setting. This meeting will address the academy concerns surrounding attendance / punctuation, discuss support in place, and allow families to raise any concerns. Further plans and expectations of attendance will be agreed at this meeting. Fixed Penalty notices may also be issues at this time. Failure in improvement will result in involvement with the Local Authority, with possible fine and court action.

6. ILLNESS: GUIDANCE FOR PARENTS/CARERS

When a child is unwell, it can be hard deciding whether to keep them off school. The home / academy agreement encourages parents to contact school for advice should they be unsure.

Where pupils are kept off inappropriately for illness, the academy welfare team will request the pupil be brought in, in order to minimise lost learning time.

Guidelines from www.nhs.uk are used by the Trust and may also help parents.

See Appendix 1 for NHS recommendations

Medical Appointments

Medical appointment for pupils should be made outside of academy hours where possible. If this is not possible, children should only be out of school for the minimum amount of time necessary for the appointment then return, should time allow.

Taking a whole day off school for a dental or medical appointment is unacceptable.

Evidence of medical appointments must be provided to the academy in order for authorisation to be given.

7. PUNCTUALITY/LATENESS

Pupils are expected to be on time at the start of the morning and afternoon school sessions. If a child is late they can miss work and time with their class teacher getting vital information. Lateness can cause disruption to the lesson for others and can be embarrassing for the child, leading to possible further absence.

Parents / carers must ensure that pupils arrive on time in line with individual academy registration and daily timetable. Please see individual academy information for relevant expectations.

All lateness is recorded daily. This information will be required by the courts, should a prosecution for non-attendance or lateness be necessary.

If a child arrives after the close of registration with a genuine reason, this will be taken into consideration. Each case of lateness is treated on an individual basis.

If a child arrives after registration without a genuine reason or is consistently late, then a phone call home will be made by a member of the Inclusion & Welfare Team.

For health and safety reasons it is important that the school knows who is in the building. Pupils arriving late should therefore report to the main school office. It is important that all pupils arriving late follow this procedure.

Parents/carers of young people who have patterns of lateness will be contacted by the Inclusion & Welfare Team to discuss the importance of good timekeeping and how this might be achieved.

8. REQUEST FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Any application for leave must be in exceptional circumstances and the Head Teacher must be satisfied that the circumstances warrant the granting of leave. These may include sporting events, performances, family event. The Head Teacher can determine the length of the authorised absence as well as whether the absence is authorised at all. There is no legal entitlement for time off in school time to go on holiday and in the majority of cases holiday will not be authorised.

Parents/carers wishing to apply for leave of absence must apply in writing on the Leave of Absence form that can be obtained from the main school office. It must be submitted in advance before making any arrangements.

If the school refuses an application and the parent still takes their child out of school, the absence will be treated as unauthorised. If the number of sessions absent hits the threshold set down in Middlesbrough Council or Redcar & Cleveland Councils Code of Conduct, parents/carers may be issued with a fixed penalty fine or face other legal action in accordance with the code.

9. PENALTY NOTICES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE AND OTHER LEGAL MEASURES

9.1 Legal Measures for tackling persistent absence or lateness

TVED and Middlesbrough Local Authority and Redcar & Cleveland Local Authority will use the full range of legal measures to secure good attendance.

The following legal measures are for pupils of compulsory school age who are registered at a school:

Parenting contracts set at Education Planning Meetings:

Parenting orders

Penalty notices

Education Supervision Orders

Prosecution

Where a child has **unauthorised absence** the school must enforce the Local Authorities Code of Conduct for issuing Penalty Notices or follow its guidance on other Legal Measures for Non-Attendance. The Code of Conduct is a statutory document that ensures that powers for legal sanctions are applied consistently and fairly across all schools and families within the local authority. **See Appendix 2.**

The Penalty Notice is a fine that is issued to each parent/carer who condoned the absence or was responsible for the child during the period of unauthorised absence for which the fine has been issued. Parents/carers will be warned of the likelihood of a Penalty Notice being issued for unauthorised absence via a letter in line with the academy attendance Case Conference meetings or the school's Attendance Policy procedures. For each case of unauthorised absence, the respective Local Authority will decide whether a Penalty Notice, and the level of such notice, is issued to one or more parent/carers for each child.

Penalties can be used where the pupil's absence has not been authorised by the school. Penalties may also be issued where parents allow their child to be present in a public place during school hours without reasonable justification during the first five days of a fixed period or permanent exclusion.

10. LEAVERS

10.1 Transfer Request

When a child is leaving any TVED academy, parents are asked to submit a transfer request to the Head Teacher with all required information detailed. The transfer request will then be submitted to the Local Authority.

If pupils leave and we do not have the above information, then the child is considered to be a 'Children Missing in Education'. The relevant safeguarding and absence procedures will be followed in line with protocol previously stated.

10.2 Gypsy, Roma, Traveller, Showman and Showman families

The absence of a child from a Traveller family that has left the area may be authorised if the absence is for work purposes only and it is believed that the family intends to return. To ensure the continuity of learning for Traveller children, dual registration is allowed. That means that a school cannot remove a Traveller child from the school roll while they are travelling. When the Traveller is away, the home school holds the place open and records the absence as authorised through the 'T' code. Distance learning packs for Traveller children are not an alternative to attendance at school.

APPENDIX 1: NHS RECOMMENDATIONS

Type of illness	NHS recommended period to be kept away from school	NHS comments	
Diarrhoea or vomiting	48 hours since last episode	This may vary in each case, please contact school for further advice	
Flu	Until recovered		
Whooping Cough 5 days from commencement of antibiotics or 21 days from onset if no antibiotic treatment		After treatment non-infectious coughing may continue for many weeks. Vaccination is available.	
Conjunctivitis	None		
Head Lice	None if the hair has been treated	Recommend use of proprietary hair conditioner combed through the hair with a nit comb	
		Mumps in teenage children can cause other serious medical complications	
Thread Worms	None	Treatment is required for the child and household contacts	
Tonsillitis	None	There are many causes, most are due to viruses and do not need antibiotics	
Chicken Pox	5 days from onset of rash or until spots are crusted over – common March – May	Chicken Pox can effect pregnant women if they have not already had the infection	
Cold Sores	None	Avoid contact with the sores	
(Herpes Simplex)			
German Measles		If pregnant women or children under 13 months come into contact with German Measles they should inform the GP immediately	
Hand, Foot and Mouth	None		
Impetigo	Until sores are crusted and healed or 48 hours after starting antibiotics	Antibiotics can speed the healing process and reduce the infectious period	
Measles	4 days from the onset of rash	If a pregnant women comes into contact with measles they should inform the GP immediately	
Warts and Verrucae None		Verrucae should be covered in swimming pools, gyms and changing rooms	
Glandular Fever	None		
Slapped Cheek	None – most cases are caught late winter, early spring	Pregnant women, people with weak immune systems or blood disorders who come into contact with slapped check should contact their GP	

APPENDIX 2: MIDDLESBROUGH LA CODE OF CONDUCT



MIDDLESBROUGH EDUCATION WELFARE SERVICE

Penalty Notice

Code of Conduct

The Education (Penalty Notices)(England) Regulations 2007

Section 444A Education Act 1996
(Section 23 Anti Social Behaviour Act 2003)

Section 103 of the Education and Inspections Act 2006 (Section 105 Education and Inspections Act 2006)

Education (Pupil Registration) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2013

Section 1

This Code of Conduct will govern the issuing of Penalty Notices for Middlesbrough Council.

In order to comply with Human Rights legislation and to ensure that there is no underlying bias that could lead to disproportionate, unfair or unequal treatment on account of ethnicity, disability or special educational needs, it is essential that Penalty Notices are issued in a consistent manner.

This code ensures that Penalty Notices are issued consistently and fairly and that suitable administrative arrangements are in place.

The Education Welfare Service (EWS) will issue Penalty Notices in Middlesbrough on behalf of the Local Authority (LA). This will ensure consistent and equitable delivery, retain home-school relationships and allow integration with other enforcement sanctions.

Penalty Notices will only be issued by 1st Class Royal Mail and never as an on the spot action; this is to ensure that all evidential requirements are in place.

These procedures apply to the parents of children of compulsory school age who are registered at a maintained school, a pupil referral unit or an academy.

Within this Code of Conduct the term 'parent' means all natural parents, whether they are married or not; and includes any person who, although not a natural parent, has parental responsibility (as defined in the Children Act 1989) for a child or young person; and any person who, although not a natural parent, has care of a child or young person, as defined in Section 576 Education Act 1996.

A Penalty Notice is a suitable intervention in circumstances where the parent is judged capable of securing their child's regular attendance or whereabouts but is not willing to take responsibility for doing so. For example where the parent:-

- has failed to effectively engage with any voluntary or supportive measures proposed to support regular school attendance
- removes their child from school during term time without authorised leave of absence
- has failed to make adequate arrangements to ensure their child is not in a public place during the first 5 days of exclusion

Section 2

Penalty Notice: in relation to school attendance

Legal Basis

Sections 444A and 444B of the Education Act 1996 (introduced by Section 23 of the Anti Social Behaviour Act 2003) introduced Penalty Notices as an alternative to prosecution under Section 444, and empowers designated Local Education Authority Officers to issue Penalty Notices in cases where an offence under s444 has, in the opinion of the Local Authority, been committed.

Parents may discharge potential liability for conviction for this offence by paying a penalty within a fixed time. There is no legal requirement for there first to have been a Penalty Notice issued before proceeding to prosecution.

The Education (Penalty Notices) (England) Regulations 2004 came into force on 1st September 2007.

Section 23 of the Anti Social Behaviour Act 2003 came into force on 27th. February 2004.

The Education (Penalty Notices) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2013 come into force on 1 September 2013. The amendment reduces the timescales for paying a penalty notice to £60 within 21 days or £120 within 28 days.

Circumstances where a Penalty Notice may be issued

A Penalty Notice may only be issued in accordance with this Code of Practice and when the Local Authority is satisfied that an offence under s444 of the Education Act 1996 has been committed by the recipient of the Notice.

A Penalty Notice can only be issued in cases of **unauthorised** absence. An unauthorised absence is recorded where the Head Teacher is not satisfied with the reasons given for absence, or a leave of absence request has been refused.

A Penalty Notice is considered appropriate in the following circumstances:

- 10 or more sessions of unauthorised absence in the previous seven school weeks.
- Unauthorised leave of absence of 10 or more sessions in the previous seven school weeks. Head
 Teachers may not grant any leave of absence during term time unless there are exceptional
 circumstances. The Head Teacher should determine the number of school days a child can be away
 from school if the leave is granted.
- Persistent late arrival (recorded as unauthorised) after the register has closed for 10 or more sessions in the previous seven school weeks.

To ensure consistent delivery of Penalty Notices the following criteria will apply:

- At least 10 sessions (5 school days) lost to unauthorised absence by the pupil in the previous seven school weeks.
- Other than in specific circumstances* the parent will receive a formal warning of the possibility of a Penalty Notice being issued and given a minimum of 10 school days to effect an improvement

*The deliberate taking of a leave of absence in term time without the Head Teacher's permission (where it can be clearly demonstrated that the parent understood that permission had not/would not be given) and where this has created, or contributed to, a period of unauthorised absence of at least 10 sessions.

In cases where families contain more than one child who meets the above criteria parents may receive a separate Penalty Notice for each child but this will be the subject of careful consideration and coordination.

Where more than one person comes within the definition of "parent" a separate Penalty Notice may be issued to each such person for each relevant offence.

Usually a parent can receive a maximum of one Penalty Notice per child; subsequent offences will proceed to prosecution.

The LA must consider every aspect of a child's case before considering whether a Penalty Notice would be appropriate.

In the case of unauthorised leave of absence the parent can make representation to the Head Teacher at the time of the leave of absence request. Where the request is refused, and there is an unauthorised absence of 10 or more sessions, the Head Teacher may notify the LA to request a Penalty Notice be issued.

Where all criteria are met the LA will:

- Ensure a formal written warning has been issued to the parent explaining the possibility of a Penalty Notice being issued.
- Penalty Notices will be posted 1st Class Royal Mail if there has been no significant improvement in the child's school attendance as required in the warning letter.

Section 3

PENALTY NOTICE: IN RELATION TO EXCLUSION

Legal Basis

Section 103 of the Education and Inspections Act 2006 places a duty on parents in relation to an excluded pupil. A parent has to ensure that their child is not present in a public place during school hours without reasonable justification during the first 5 days of each and every fixed period or permanent exclusion as specified in a Notice given to the parent by the School under s104 of the Education and Inspections Act 2006.

The implementation of the Education and Inspections Act 2006 Section 105 allows for a Penalty Notice to be given to a parent guilty of an offence under Section 103. The school must have notified the parent at the time of the exclusion of their duty and the days to which it relates.

Designated Local Authority Officers are empowered to issue Penalty Notices where pupils are found in a public place during the first 5 days of exclusion.

The Education (Penalty Notice) (England) Regulations 2007 came into force on 1st September 2007.

Circumstances where a Penalty Notice may be issued

The parent is liable for a Penalty Notice if a child is found present in a public place during school hours without reasonable justification during the first 5 days of each and every period of a fixed or permanent exclusion as specified in a Notice given to the parent by the School under s104 of the Education and Inspections Act 2006.

Where more than one person comes within the definition of "parent" a separate Penalty Notice may be issued to each such person for each relevant offence.

The LA must consider every aspect of a child's case before considering whether a Penalty Notice would be appropriate.

The LA recognises that, in some circumstances, it may be necessary for a child to be in a public place during school hours on a day when they are excluded. For example, the child may have a prearranged medical appointment or emergency. Similarly if the parent needs urgent medical help it may be inappropriate to leave the child at home. In all cases it will be for the parent to prove reasonable justification.

A reasonable justification depends upon points of fact and evidence, and will ultimately be decided by the Courts.

Procedure for issue

The EWS, on behalf of the LA, will receive requests to issue Penalty Notices from Cleveland Police. These requests will be actioned provided that:

- All necessary information is provided to the EWS to establish that an offence under Section 103 of the Education Act 2006 has been committed.
- the circumstances of the pupil's whereabouts meets all the requirements of this Code of Conduct.
- The issue of a Penalty Notice does not conflict with other intervention strategies in place or other enforcement sanctions already being processed.

A parent can receive a maximum of 2 Penalty Notices resulting from an individual child being in a public place during the first 5 days of a fixed period or permanent exclusion; subsequent offences will proceed to immediate prosecution.

Section 4

Limitations on Local Authorities issuing Penalty Notices

A Local Authority may only issue a Penalty Notice in respect of a child: -

- Who is a registered pupil at a school in the area of the Authority
- For whom the Authority has made arrangements for alternative educational provision (whether or not in the area of that Authority)
- Who is not, at the time the notice is given, a registered pupil at any school (whether due to permanent exclusion or otherwise) but resides in the area of that Authority

NB The Local Authority of the school at which the child is registered should issue the Penalty Notice. Where the child has been excluded it would be the Local Authority where the child resides.

Procedure for withdrawing Penalty Notices

A Penalty Notice may be withdrawn by Middlesbrough Council in any case in which the Authority determines that:-

- It ought not to have been issued
- It ought not to have been issued to the person named as recipient
- It contains material errors
- The use of the Penalty Notice did not conform to the terms of this Code of Conduct

Where a Penalty Notice has been withdrawn in accordance with the above, a notice of the withdrawal shall be given to the recipient. Any amount paid by way of penalty in pursuance of that notice shall be repaid to the person who paid it. No proceedings shall be continued or instituted against the recipient for the offence for which the withdrawn notice was issued.

Payment of Penalty Notices

Arrangements for payment will be detailed on the Penalty Notice.

Payment of a Penalty Notice discharges the parent's liability for the offence in question, and they cannot subsequently be prosecuted for the offence covered by the Penalty Notice.

The penalty is £60 if paid within 21 days of receipt of the notice, rising to £120 if paid after 21 days but within 28 days of receipt of the notice. If the penalty is not paid in full by the end of the 28 day period the Local Authority must either prosecute for the offence to which the notice applies or withdraw the notice.

Non-payment of Penalty Notices:

Non-payment of a Penalty Notice will result in the withdrawal of the notice and will trigger the prosecution process. Prosecution is for the offence to which the notice relates rather than for non-payment of the notice.

In the case of the prosecution of a parent who has failed to ensure their child attends school regularly the prosecution will be brought by the Local Authority under the provisions of Section 444 Education Act 1996.

In the case of prosecution of a parent who has failed to ensure that their child is not found in a public place during a specified day of exclusion the prosecution will be brought by the Local Authority under the provisions of Section 103 of the Education and Inspections Act 2006.

The parent cannot be prosecuted for the particular offence for which a notice was issued until after the final deadline for payment has passed (28 days after receipt of the notice) and cannot be convicted of that offence if the parent pays a penalty in accordance with the notice.

Policy and Publicity

All school Attendance Policies will include information on the deployment of Penalty Notices and this will be brought to the attention of all parents.

The Local Authority will include information on the use of Penalty Notices and other attendance enforcement sanctions in promotional and public information material.

Reporting and Review

The EWS will report at regular intervals to the Director of Education on the deployment and outcomes of Penalty Notices.

The EWS will review Penalty Notice use at regular intervals and amend the general enforcement strategy as appropriate.

Revised

September 2017

Lynn Mitchell

Attendance Manager

Education Welfare Service

APPENDIX 3: REDCAR & CLEVELAND LA CODE OF CONDUCT

PENALTY NOTICE CODE OF CONDUCT

Rationale

- 1.1 Regular and punctual attendance of pupils at school is both a legal requirement and essential in order for pupils to maximise the opportunities available to them. The Redcar & Cleveland Attendance & Welfare Service (AWS) will continue to investigate cases of regular non-attendance from school and, following appropriate casework, instigate legal action if applicable. A Penalty Notice is an alternative to prosecution which does not require an appearance in court whilst still ensuring an improvement in a student's attendance. Payment of a Penalty Notice enables parents to discharge potential liability for conviction. Following the implementation of Section 23 of the Anti Social Behaviour Act 2003 it is possible that certain cases of unauthorised absence can be dealt with by way of a Penalty Notice. Penalty Notices will require the parent of a child of compulsory school age, whose attendance has been unsatisfactory, to pay a fine, currently £60.00 if paid within 21 days or £120.00 if paid within 28 days.
- 1.2 In order to comply with Human Rights legislation it is essential that Penalty Notices be issued in a consistent manner. This Code ensures that the power to use Penalty Notices is applied consistently and fairly and that suitable administrative arrangements are in place.

2. New Legislation

The Education (Pupil Registration) (England) Regulations 2006 previously enabled a Head Teacher to grant leave of absence for the purpose of a holiday, as long as the leave of absence was made in advance and that there were special circumstances for granting the leave however, these regulations have been amended by regulations of the same name which came into force on 1st September 2013. The new regulations remove all references for holidays and the ability to authorise up to 10 school days of leave, so that leave of absence is only granted where a request is made in advance and the leave is classed as exceptional circumstances. There is no statutory definition of what is classed as an exceptional circumstance and it is the decision of the Head Teacher2 Procedure for issuing Penalty Notices

- 2.1 Following consultation with Cleveland Police Communities and Partnerships, Head Teachers and Governors and the Local Authority Legal Services Team it has been agreed that within the Borough, Penalty Notices will only be issued by the Attendance & Welfare Service following authorisation from the Team Manager. This will ensure that duplicate notices will not be issued or when proceedings for an offence under Section 444 Education Act 1996, have already been commenced. Requests to issue notices from other authorities will also only be considered and authorised by the Team Manager. The Service will ensure that the issuing of Penalty Notices is closely monitored and that recipients pay the relevant fine to the Local Authority. In any case where the penalty is not paid within the appropriate period, the AWS reserves the right to instigate action through the courts as required by legislation.
- 2.2 No one parent will receive more than three separate Penalty Notices, resulting from the unauthorised absence of an individual child in any twelve month period.

- 2.3 The Attendance & Welfare Service will consider requests to issue Penalty Notices from schools/colleges in Redcar & Cleveland and neighbouring local authorities. The Attendance & Welfare Service will action these requests providing:
- a. The circumstances of the case meet the criteria for the issue of a Penalty Notice which are specified in this Code of Conduct, and
- b. All necessary information is provided to the Attendance & Welfare Service in order to establish that an offence, under Section 444(1) Education Act 1996, has been committed.
- 2.4 Within this Code of Conduct, a parent is defined as per Section 576 Education Act 1996, as follows:

'Parent' means all natural parents, whether they are married or not; and includes any person who, although not a natural parent, has parental responsibility (as defined in the Children's Act 1989) for a child or young person; and any person who, although not a natural parent, has care of a child or young person.

- 2.5 In cases requiring the issue of a Penalty Notice(s), each parent will receive a separate Penalty Notice for each child. Should a parent fail or refuse to pay any Penalty Notice issued for this reason, then the evidence provided by the school/college will be the only information laid before the court.
- 2.6 Penalty Notices will not be issued during Truancy Patrols as this could be a health and safety risk. Additionally, not all the information will be available to prove the offence at that time.
- 2.7 Where a Year 11 student is not attending school in the spring term a Penalty Notice should be issued as opposed to a prosecution being taken under Section 444 of the Education Act 1996. However, if the penalty is not paid a prosecution may ensue.
- 3. General criteria for the issuing of a Penalty Notice

For issues of non-school attendance (contrary to Section 444(1) of the Education Act 1996):

- 3.1 A formal warning letter to be issued to parent(s), advising that in order to avoid a Penalty Notice, the student should record no unauthorised absence during a specific fifteen school day period. Parent(s) should receive the warning letter no later than three days before the monitoring period commences.
- 3.2 If unauthorised absence is recorded during the dates specified on the warning letter, the Penalty Notice will be issued to parent(s).

For issues of unauthorised leave of absence:

3.3 A separate Leave of Absence policy applies. Consideration is given for issuing Penalty Notices during the following:

Anytime in September

For any student whose attendance was below 95%, within the previous 12 calendar months, measured from the date before the first day of the leave of absence (including authorised and unauthorised absence)

At any time during formal external examinations and assessment periods, including preparation time (school to provide evidence to support)

If a holiday warning letter or Penalty Notice has been issued during the previous 12 calendar months, measured from the date before the first day of the leave of absence regardless of overall attendance during the previous 12 month period

- 4. Procedure for withdrawing Penalty Notices
- 4.1 A Penalty Notice may be withdrawn by Redcar & Cleveland Local Authority in any case in which the authority determines that:
- (a) it should not have been issued, or
- (b) it should not have been issued to the person named as the recipient, or
- (c) it contains material errors.
- 4.2 Where a Penalty Notice has been withdrawn in accordance with the above, a notice of the withdrawal shall be given to the recipient and any amount paid by way of penalty in pursuance of that notice shall be repaid to the person who paid it. No proceedings shall be continued or instituted against the recipient for the offence in connection with which the withdrawn notice was issued or for an offence under Section 444(1) of the Education Act 1996 arising out of the same circumstances.
- 5. Payment of Penalty Notices

The arrangements for the paying of penalties will be detailed on the Penalty Notice.

6. Appeal

There is no statutory right of appeal once a notice has been issued.